Public Document Pack

Procurement Board
Dear Member,
You are invited to attend the meeting of the Procurement Board to be held as follows
for the transaction of the business indicated.
Tom Stannard
Chief Executive
DATE:

Wednesday, 14 September 2022

TIME:

12.30 pm

VENUE:

Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record
this meeting.
AGENDA
FACE TO FACE PUBLIC MEETINGS AT THE SALFORD SUITE ADVICE FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC (UPDATED 31.05.22)

(Pages 1 - 2)

1

Apologies for absence

2

Declarations of interest

3

To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held
on Wednesday 24 August 2022

4

Matters arising

5

Decision items - Part 1 (open to the public)

5a

Approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to enable
One Heritage Tower Limited to award a contract for public realm
works on Council owned land adjacent New Bridge Street, Greengate

(Pages 7 - 18)

5b

Street Lighting Cyclical Inspection and Maintenance programme

(Pages 19 - 24)

5c

Approval to go out to competition for Minor Building Works
Framework Agreements

(Pages 25 - 28)

6

Any other business - Part 1 (open to the public)

7

Exclusion of the public

8

Decision items - Part 2 (closed to the public)

(Pages 3 - 6)

9

Date and time of next meeting
15:00pm on Thursday 29 September 2022 in the Salford Suite at the
Public Document Pack Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton,
M27 5DA

Contact Officer:
Chris Howl

Tel No:
E-Mail:

chris.howl@salford.gov.uk

Agenda Annex
Face to face public meetings at Salford Civic Centre
Face to face public meetings are being held in Old Town Hall Building at the Civic
Centre and currently most meetings are being held in The Salford Suite, the Council
Chamber and in the next couple of months the committee rooms will re-open. The
venue for each meeting is shown on the agenda for each meeting and these are
published on the city council website here.
1. Important information for attending public meetings in the Salford Suite
a. Where to enter the building
You must enter the building by the main front door of the Old Town Hall building.
You will need to be let into the building as a pass is required so an officer from
Democratic Services should be on hand to direct you safely to The Salford Suite.
For evening meetings, if you cannot get access via the main front door please
walk around to the main Reception and press the out of hours buzzer to gain
access.

b. Areas of the building that are closed to people attending meetings
 Other members of the public are also using the building to access the
Registrars offices and the ceremony rooms and arrangements and to help us
manage the numbers of people in the building so access is restricted to
the Registrars corridor and the ceremony room’s corridor during the
day.
c. Accessible access to the Council Chamber
The public gallery for the Council Chamber is accessed by a staircase. If this is
not suitable for you there are spaces in the council chamber available for the
public who cannot access the gallery. To access these spaces, please email
decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk a few days in advance of the meeting
(if possible) and the clerk for the meeting will arrange this for you.
d. Toilets
 The toilets on the first floor on the committee room corridor must be used.
The Registrars corridor will not be open to members, officers and
members of the public attending meetings in The Salford Suite during
the day.
 The accessible toilet can be used on the Registrars corridor if required.

Last updated 31.05.22

Page 1

2. What to do if you have symptoms of a respiratory infection, including
COVID-19, and have not taken a COVID-19 test.
The advice on the gov.uk website says:


Try to stay at home and avoid contact with other people if you have symptoms
of a respiratory infection, such as COVID-19, and you have a high
temperature or do not feel well, try to stay at home and avoid contact with
other people, until you no longer have a high temperature (if you had one) or
until you no longer feel unwell.



If you leave your home while you have symptoms of a respiratory infection,
and you have a high temperature or feel unwell, the following actions will
reduce the chance of passing on your infection to others:
o wearing a well-fitting face covering made with multiple layers or a surgical
face mask
o avoiding crowded places such as public transport, large social gatherings,
or anywhere that is enclosed or poorly ventilated
o covering your mouth and nose when you cough or sneeze; wash your
hands frequently with soap and water for 20 seconds or use hand sanitiser
after coughing, sneezing and blowing your nose and before you eat or
handle food and avoid touching your face.

3. What to do if you have a positive COVID-19 test result
The advice on the gov.uk website says:
 Try to stay at home and avoid contact with other people if you have a positive
COVID-19 test result, it is very likely that you have COVID-19 even if you do
not have any symptoms. You can pass on the infection to others, even if you
have no symptoms.
 Many people with COVID-19 will no longer be infectious to others after 5
days. If you have a positive COVID-19 test result, try to stay at home and
avoid contact with other people for 5 days after the day you took your test. At
the end of this period, if you have a high temperature or feel unwell, try to
follow this advice until you feel well enough to resume normal activities and
you no longer have a high temperature if you had one.
 Although many people will no longer be infectious to others after 5 days,
some people may be infectious to other people for up to 10 days from the
start of their infection. You should avoid meeting people at higher risk of
becoming seriously unwell from COVID-19, especially those whose immune
system means that they are at higher risk of serious illness from COVID-19,
despite vaccination, for 10 days after the day you took your test.
 If you leave your home during the 5 days after your positive test result the
following steps will reduce the chance of passing on COVID-19 to others:
o wear a well-fitting face covering made with multiple layers or a surgical
face mask.
o avoid crowded places such as public transport, large social gatherings, or
anywhere that is enclosed or poorly ventilated.
o cover your mouth and nose when you cough or sneeze; wash your hands
frequently with soap and water for 20 seconds or use hand sanitiser after
coughing, sneezing and blowing your nose and before you eat or handle
food; avoid touching your face.
Last updated 31.05.22

Page 2

Agenda Item 3
Procurement Board meeting held in the Civic Centre, Chorley Road,
Swinton, M27 5DA
Wednesday, 24 August 2022
Meeting commenced at 10:00am
Meeting ended at 10:20am
Present in Person
City Mayor, Paul Dennett and Councillor Merry.
In Attendance in Person
Chris Howl
Democratic Services
Nick Jackson
MEN Reporter
In Attendance via MS Teams
David Mills
Strategic Finance Manager
Anthony Hilton
Strategic Head of Procurement
Dylan Vince
Service Manager - Assets & Development
Gillian Holt
Principal Officer – Development
Les Woolhouse
Head of Service, Building & Facilities
1. Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Hinds, Councillor
Kelly, Councillor Youd.
2. Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.
3. Minutes of Proceedings
The minutes of the meeting held on 10 August 2022 were approved as a correct
record.
4. Matters Arising
There were no matters arising.
5. Decision Items - Part 1 (Open to the Public)
5(a) Approval to Award the Contract for the construction of the design and
build of 177 units at Longshaw Drive, Little Hulton to Seddon Construction
The Strategic Director for Place submitted a report seeking approval to award the
contract for the construction of the design and build of 177 units at Longshaw Drive,
Little Hulton to Seddon Construction.
The project is currently at RIBA stage 4 (final design stage) and all information is in
place to enable the construction of the project to progress and planning permission
that was approved on 16 December 2021.
Since the approval of the enabling contract in March 2022, the title issues relating to
part of the site have now been resolved with the whole site now being in the full

Page 3

ownership of Salford City Council on a freehold basis. Furthermore, Homes England
grant funding has now been secured.
On completion of the development (anticipated 2025), the intention is for 92 units
within the scheme to be disposed of to Dérive RP for social and affordable housing,
with 85 units for the private rented sector and open market sales, developed to
create a sustainable mix of properties and improve the viability of the scheme.
RESOLVED: THAT Procurement Board note the proposals detailed on the terms as
set out in this report and on the detailed terms set out in the Part 2 report on the
agenda and:
 approves the award of the contract to Seddon Construction, to act as
Construction Partner, for the construction phase of the design and build of 177
units at Longshaw Drive following previous approval to progress the scheme to
RIBA stage 4 (report approved at Procurement Board on 28th July 2021).
 approves the overall development budget of £39,191,932 (Contractor Costs
£37,482,960 and Salford City Council costs £1,708,972 – for statutory costs,
surveys and fees).
6. Any Other Business Part 1 - Open to the Public
There were no items of any other business.
7. Exclusion of the public
RESOLVED: THAT, under section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the
grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as specified in
paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act.
8. Decision Items Part 2 - Closed to the Public
8(a) Approval to Award the Contract for the construction of the design and
build of 177 units at Longshaw Drive, Little Hulton to Seddon Construction
The Strategic Director for Place submitted a report seeking approval to award the
contract for the construction of the design and build of 177 units at Longshaw Drive,
Little Hulton to Seddon Construction.
The project is currently at RIBA stage 4 (final design stage) and all information is in
place to enable the construction of the project to progress and planning permission
that was approved on 16 December 2021.
Since the approval of the enabling contract in March 2022, the title issues relating to
part of the site have now been resolved with the whole site now being in the full
ownership of Salford City Council on a freehold basis. Furthermore, Homes England
grant funding has now been secured.
On completion of the development (anticipated 2025), the intention is for 92 units
within the scheme to be disposed of to Dérive RP for social and affordable housing,
with 85 units for the private rented sector and open market sales, developed to
create a sustainable mix of properties and improve the viability of the scheme.

Page 4

RESOLVED: THAT Procurement Board note the proposals detailed terms set out in
this report and the details on the terms as set out in the Part 1 report on the agenda
and:
 approves the award of the contract to Seddon Construction, to act as
Construction Partner, for the construction phase of the design and build of 177
units at Longshaw Drive following previous approval to progress the scheme to
RIBA stage 4 (report approved at Procurement Board on 28th July 2021).
 approves the overall development budget of £39,191,932 (Contractor Costs
£37,482,960 and Salford City Council costs £1,708,972 – for statutory costs,
surveys and fees).
9. Date and Time of Next Meeting
14:00pm on Wednesday 14 September 2022 in the Salford Suite at the Salford Civic
Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5DA.

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5a
Part 1: Open to the public

REPORT OF
The Strategic Director for Place
TO
Procurement Board
ON
14th September 2022
TITLE: Approval for an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to enable One
Heritage Tower Limited to award a contract for public realm works on Council owned
land adjacent New Bridge Street, Greengate.
RECOMMENDATION:
That the Procurement Board approves an exception to Contractual Standing Orders
as permitted within the City Council Constitution for the reason(s) highlighted in the
table below to enable One Heritage Tower Limited to procure public realm works to
provide a riverside walkway on Council owned land in advance of the grant of a lease,
as an element of the works contract for delivery of the consented residential
development One Heritage Tower, as detailed in the table below:

Detail required

Answers

Title/Description of Contracted
Service/Supply/Project

Public realm works to provide improved riverside
walkway on Council owned land as an element of
the works contract for delivery of One Heritage
Tower residential development.

Name of Successful Contractor

Midgard Limited

Supplier Registration Number

05718686

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Type of organisation

Private Limited Company

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Status of Organisation
SME

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Contract Value
Contract Duration

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

c.£364,000

Choose an item.

Works programmed at end of 4 year build
programme.

Page 7

Contract Start Date

01/12/2022

Contract End Date

01/11/2026

Optional Extension Period 1
Optional Extension Period 2
Who will approve each Extension Period?
Contact Officer (Name & number)

Choose an item.

Lead Service Group

Choose an item.

Reason for CSO Exception
(select all that apply)

The goods / services / works are only obtainable
from one provider and there is no other provider
available to allow genuine competition
The execution of works or the supply of goods
or services is controlled by a statutory body
Delivers Best Value to the Council
Special education, health or social care
contracts, if it is considered in the Council’s best
interests and to meet the Council’s obligations
under relevant legislation
The execution of works or the supply of goods
and services is required so urgently as not to
permit compliance with the requirements of
competition
Security works where the publication of
documents or details in the tendering process
could prejudice the security of SCC and Salford
residents
Procurements made through, or on behalf of,
any consortium, local authority, statutory or
similar body, provided that tenders or quotations
are invited and contracts placed in accordance
with national or EU legislation.

Funding Source

Choose an item.
Mayor’s Employment Charter
Committed to sign up to the Charter

Ethical Contractor

Accredited Living Wage Employer

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The purpose of this report is to request an exception to Contractual Standing Orders
to enable One Heritage Tower Limited to award a contract for delivery of public realm
works to provide a riverside walkway as approved under planning application ref
19/74205/FULEIA, in advance of the grant of a lease of the land to One Heritage Tower
Limited.

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 8

The reasons why an exception is requested are as follows:


One Heritage Tower Limited are developing the land in their ownership under
an approved residential planning consent (subject to completion of a Section
106 Agreement), to include improvements to the walkway land fronting the river
required as a planning condition, which they are going to lease from the
Council.



One Heritage Tower Limited will be appointing a contractor to develop this area
with the inclusion of the walkway land. The walkway works, at a cost estimated
at £364,000, will be included in one works package as part of One Heritage
Tower Limited’s tender process to appoint a contractor.



An exception to CSO’s for works to the walkway land will offer value for money
for the Council as the developer will be undertaking the public realm works at
its own expense and by undertaking a tender process for the full scheme with
the walkway works included the developer will secure economies of scale and
only be dealing with one contractor.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
Report to Property & Regeneration Briefing on 25th October 2021 seeking approval of
lease terms to One Heritage Tower Limited.

KEY DECISION: Yes
*Yes – if total value of contract (i.e. value over full cycle of contract including any
potential extension period) is greater than £350,000 or if it will have a significant impact
on two or more wards or if it is deemed to be novel or contentious
NB: This item must have been on the Forward Plan for 28 days before the report is
submitted to Procurement Board and the decision is made. Contact Claire Edwards
Senior Democratic Services Officer 793 2602 for advice)
*No – if the value of the decision is between £150,000 and £349,999
NB: whether it is a Key Decision or not, this item must be put on the Forward Look to
ensure it is picked up as an agenda item for the required Procurement Board meeting.
Please give full title of report as stated in this report and also include whether it is a
Part 1 or Part 2 report. Contact your Strategic Director’s PA for advice.
DETAILS:
1.0

Background

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 9

1.1

The Council has freehold title to a strip of land fronting the River Irwell off
New Bridge Street, acquired in 1991 for provision of a section of riverside
walkway.

1.2

The development plot adjacent to the riverside walkway was the subject of
a planning application in 2019 for a residential development comprising 545
apartments, with public realm improvements that include the existing
riverside walkway. The application was subject to minor amendments that
were considered by Planning Panel in October 2021 and were minded to
approve, subject to completion of a Section 106 Agreement to secure
planning obligations.

1.3

A proportion of the river-facing elevation of the proposed residential tower
over-sails the Council’s ownership along the river frontage and proposed
amendments to the basement level will also extend into the Council’s
ownership. The developer has sought to regularise this proposed
occupation and delivery of enhanced public realm works by way of
negotiation of lease terms.

1.4

The amended scheme, as consented, will see delivery of significant
improvements to the riverside walkway, a key aim of the Greengate
Regeneration Strategy 2018, by way of planning condition. To facilitate the
delivery of the public realm improvements, including a dedicated permitted
route for public access along the river frontage, and transfer future
maintenance liability for the walkway to the developer, terms have been
agreed for an Agreement for Lease followed by the grant of a long-leasehold
interest in the walkway land to the developer, One Heritage Tower Limited.

1.5

The Agreement for Lease will not be entered into until a Section 106
Agreement securing the provision of the public realm works has been
completed and a planning decision notice issued.

2.0

Why an exception is requested

2.1

An exception and waiver to the Council’s contractual standing orders is
requested in relation to the procurement of works on Council owned land in
advance of the lease being completed.

2.2

Lease terms have been agreed on the basis of the heads of terms approved
at Property & Regeneration Briefing on 25 th October 2021, by way of an
Agreement for Lease to enable conditional access to undertake
development, with a lease being granted on completion of the public realm
works. As the public realm walkway land is owned by the Council at the time
the works are to undertaken, the developer should conform to the Councils
Contractual Standing Orders to procure a contractor to undertake the public
realm works.

2.3

As the developer owns the adjacent development site it makes sense to
obtain an exception to CSO’s for the public realm walkway, which can the n
be included within the developer’s whole works package. The developer

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 10

will then be managing one contractor and ensuring value for money is
obtained. An exception is therefore required for the works to the walkway
land only.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:
Regeneration, Greengate Regeneration Strategy 2018.
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:Not applicable.
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:
Low. The works will be undertaken at One Heritage Tower Limited’s cost under a
building licence and Agreement for Lease. The works will not be commenced until a
Section 106 Agreement has been completed and the lease will only be granted on
delivery of the public realm works to an agreed timescale and specification.
SOURCE OF FUNDING:
Works to be funded by developer, One Heritage Tower Limited.
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by Tony Hatton, Shared Legal Service
Ordinarily when commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or
the execution of works the Council as a ‘contracting authority’ must comply with the
Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR) as well as the provisions of its own
Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), Financial Regulations and the duties of Best
and Social value. In addition, the PCR require that contracting authorities treat
candidates equally and in a non-discriminatory way and act in a transparent manner,
failing which the award of a contract may be subject to legal challenge.
In exceptional circumstances the Council may dispense with strict compliance of its
CSO’s, and the report sets out the reasons for the request for the exception, in
accordance with paragraph 3.1 of CSO’s. Whilst exceptions may be authorised by an
approval from the Procurement Board, there is still a risk of challenge from aggrieved
providers if the usual tender process has not been followed on the basis that it ought
to have been advertised and put out to competition.
The risk of challenge increases with the value and duration of a proposed contract
being awarded. The report sets out the reasons for the need to enter this contract, the
benefits and value to the Council, and also states the reasons for the request for
exception, such as offering value for money as the developer will be undertaking the

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 11

public realm works at its own expense and by undertaking a tender process for the full
scheme, and with the walkway works included the developer will secure economies of
scale and only be dealing with one contractor..
Whilst the value of the works in the report are below threshold the PCR require that
contracting authorities treat candidates equally and in a non-discriminatory way and
act in a transparent manner, failing which the award of a contract may be subject to
legal challenge.
The Council is also under a best value duty to carry out its functions economically,
efficiently and effectively with the objective to achieve value for money in all public
procurement. The Council has considered the circumstances in this matter and
concluded that the recommendation to permit the developer to award the contract as
part of the whole works package to be of least risk and of most benefit to the Council.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
Supplied by: David R Mills – Interim Strategic Finance Manager –
david.mills@salford.gov.uk
There is a premium payment on commencement of a 999 year lease term with respect
to this land, and the developer will be undertaking the public realm works at their
expense.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Deborah Derbyshire x 6244
As with any exception there is always the risk of challenge but in this case the risk is
relatively low. As the walkway is owned by the Council and will be leased to the
developer on completion of works, with rights reserved to the Council for public
access to the walkway, it makes sense for the developer to include the walkway
within the full scheme of works by appointing one contractor through their own
procurement process which will ensure that SCC obtain value for money. By
approval of the exception from the Procurement Board the report will therefore
comply with the contractual standing orders.

HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:
Not applicable.

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:
Considered as part of the earlier report to Property & Regeneration Briefing approving
lease terms.

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 12

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:
Regeneration.
CONTACT OFFICER:

John Nugent, Development Surveyor, Property Services

TELEPHONE NUMER:

0161 779 6072

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):
Blackfriars and Trinity.

Sample C – Exception to CSO’S

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

TRINITY WAY
Ward Bdy

Wellington
Bridge

Waterloo
Bridge

BR
ID
GE

ST
RE
E

T

30.8m

NE
W

Car Park

30.1m
LB

LAND ADJACENT TO
NEW BRIDGE STREET
SALFORD

Property Plan Ref:
Information Section Scale @ A4:

Date:
Salford Civic Centre OS Map Ref:
Chorley Road Area:

Page 15Salford

M27 5AS

1:500
04/05/2020
SJ8399SE

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100019737 2020

This page is intentionally left blank

C
ELE R
E
RIS

D13

D11
D25

D10

CH
ME R
E
RIS

FT

HA
ES
OK m2
M
S
1 .5

·
·
·

UTE .

CH

60 0

DIA

D10

D17

E
TOR
C
ELE R S
E
D19
RIS

·
·
·
·
·

D16

D23

D11

D11

WC

D17

WC

D11

D19

D 16

D11

D11

·

·
·
·

15
+27.7

1:7
R
570 AMP
0
15m mm
mF
ALL

·
·
·

@8

Rev Drawn

Date

Description

·
·
SMO
K
SHA E
FT
1.2
m2

First Floor
Suite 4
14-32 Hewitt Street
Manchester
M15 4GB

·

Civil & Structural Engineers

·
·
·
·

0161 237 3400

Fax :

0161 923 4787

Email :

manchester@integraconsulting.co.uk

Web :

www.integraconsulting.co.uk

STAGE 3

·
·

Contract:

ONE HERITAGE TOWER,
SALFORD

+30

.750

Tel :

Drawing status:

·
1:35
R
100
mm AMP
FAL
L

0

·
·

28.74

D11

Page 17

·
·
·
·
·

D16

·

·
·
·
·
·

Drawing title:

EXTERNAL FINISHES GA

Scales

Date

06/20

1:000 @ A0

·

Drawn

Checked

RH
Contract No
Project

Originator Volume Level

Type

Role

No.

OHT - INT - 00 - XX-DR - D - 1002

-

Revision

P3

3192

NS
Drawing No

1002

Rev

P3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5b
Part 1: Open to the public

REPORT OF
The Strategic Director for Place
TO
Procurement Board
ON
14th September 2022

TITLE: Approval to Award the Contract for Street Lighting Cyclic Maintenance

RECOMMENDATION:
That Procurement Board approve the award of the Contract for Street Lighting Cyclic
Maintenance services as detailed in the table below:

Detail required

Answers

Title/Description of Contracted
Service/Supply/Project

Street Lighting Cyclical Inspection and
Maintenance

Name of Successful Contractor

Altitude Service Ltd

Supplier Registration Number

3350786

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Type of organisation

Private Limited Company

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Status of Organisation

Non-SME

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement)

Contract Value (£)

£80,000 per annum

Contract Duration

24 months

Contract Start Date

05/09/2022

Contract End Date

05/09/2024

Optional Extension Period 1

12 months

Optional Extension Period 2

12 months

Who will approve each Extension
Period?

Procurement Board (extension > £150k)

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 19

Detail required

Answers

Contact Officer (Name & number)
Lead Service Group

Paul Jackson - 07812 781 562
Place

How the contract was procured?
(to be supplied by procurement)
Framework Details (where applicable)
(procurement body, framework
reference & title, start/ end date
Funding Source
Ethical Contractor (EC): Mayor’s
Employment Charter
EC: Committed to sign up to charter

Open Tender on the Chest
N/A
Revenue Budget

x

EC: Accredited Living Wage Employer

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above-mentioned
contract.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
Approval to go out to tender was given at the Procurement Board meeting held 16th
February 2022. An invitation to tender was submitted to the Chest in February 2022.

KEY DECISION:
Yes – Whilst the activity is a business as usual one, the potential total value of the
contract is circa £320,000

DETAILS:
1.
Background
Salford City Council is seeking to appoint a Street Lighting Annual Inspection and
Maintenance service provider to deliver essential reactive and planned street lighting
maintenance works for the Technical Highways Services team. Since the transition
from the Urban Vision partnerships agreement, there is now a need to have in place
a legally compliant and properly procured contractual agreement with a third-party
contractor to deliver these services. It is intended to appoint a single contractor to
Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 20

deliver this service, this includes the inspection, reporting, cleaning and routine
maintenance of the street lighting network, that consists of approximately 30,000 street
lighting columns, which SCC is responsible for. This service will run in tandem with the
in-house Street Lighting team based at Swinton Hall Road depot, who deliver the vast
majority of any emergency or reactive repair and maintenance. The maintenance
schedule is split into a 6-year cycle based on historically defined zones across the city
regions. The yearly funding allocation is used to maintain as much of the asset as
possible with the monies available. Based on previous years spend and current budget
levels, the value of the tender should be estimated at £80,000 per annum and
£320,000 for the potential duration of the award. Due to a lack of in-house technical
capability and resources at this time and the absence of a contract to award this work,
there is currently a back-log of maintenance work. It is hoped that through awarding
this contract any backlog of maintenance activity can be addressed in year one, and
the forward programme can remain on track.
Approval to go out to competition for the provision of Street Lighting contract was
secured at Procurement Board dated February 16th, 2022.
An open tender
opportunity was subsequently advertised on the Chest in March 2022 and team are
seeking to award the contract to the successful bidder for a period of 2 year + 1 +1
year subject to annual review.

2.

The Procurement Process

An invitation to tender was submitted to the Chest in March 2022. This was an open
tender process that allowed any business interested in the contract to bid via that
system. The process saw 17 of businesses indicate an expression of interest with
ultimately five businesses submitting formal applications. These bids were assessed
internally by members of the Technical Services team using a weighting of 50% price,
35% quality and 15% social value. The social value aspect was assessed externally
by The Social Value Portal. These weightings were used in view of the fact that road
lining services are very similar regardless of the business providing them and price of
services is a key determining factor in the operating model for such activities.
Scoring for the assessment was as below:
Company
Name
Altitude
Services

Quality
Score

Price Score

Social value
score

Total Score

Ranking

34.40%

15.61%

18.00%

68.01%

1

2

Bidder 2

21.60%

40.00%

6.17%

67.77%

2

3

Bidder 3

12.80%

16.99%

11.05%

40.84%

3

4

Bidder 4

25.60%

0.00%

10.12%

35.72%

4

Nr
1



We are recommending that Altitude Services Ltd be awarded the contract as
overall they are the Most Economically Advantageous Tender (MEAT) i.e. an

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 21

award to Altitude Services which is not the highest in terms of Price but has
the highest overall score once Quality and Social Value is also taken into
account


The contract duration is intended for two years with the option to extend by 12
months plus a further 12 months providing contractor performance is
acceptable.



Members of the Technical Services team will monitor contractor performance
and it will be this regular assessment which will determine whether the
extensions will be activated or not.

3.

Social Value

The Contractor’s ability to deliver Social Value outcomes was assessed as part of the
Framework process; all potential bidders had demonstrated a satisfactory capacity to
deliver Social value outcomes.
Bidders were asked a series of questions that covered the following areas which would
deliver social value outcomes during construction.


Total spent in the LOCAL supply chain through the contract



Number of new local businesses added to your supply chain



Total amount (£) spent through the contract with LOCAL MSMEs



Donations or in-kind contributions to local community projects (£ & materials)



No. of staff hours spent on local school and college visits (inc. prep. Time)



Equality, diversity and inclusion training for staff & supply chain



Carbon savings from energy efficiency measures - on site



No. employees provided access to multidimensional wellbeing programmes



No. of hours volunteering time provided to support local community projects



Innovative measures to safeguard the environment

The successful tenderer was the highest scoring bidder in this area and has committed
to working with the SCC Technical Services team in order to deliver on promises made
in their submission and deliver social value to the area throughout the lifetime of the
bid.
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:
List the strategies, plan or programme to which the project/scheme/service or
purchase of goods specifically relates.

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 22

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:
N/A
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:
If the contract is not awarded it runs the risk of the street lighting not being
maintained to the required standards expected and increasing a health and safety
risk to residents
SOURCE OF FUNDING:
This will be funded via the annual Highways Maintenance Revenue Budget
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: The Shared Legal Service
When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services, or the
execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract
may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. The proposed award of
the contract follows a tender exercise by competition in accordance with an Open
Tender arrangement via The Chest portal.
The procurement procedure undertaken in this matter appears robust, and the
appointment of the provider for this service follows an open tender process which is
outlined within the body of the report, with 4 bidders submitting tenders and being
evaluated on the most economically advantageous tender basis, resulting in the
proposed award of the contract to Altitude Services Ltd, which is compliant with the
requirements of CSO’s and public procurement legislation. Undertaking the open
tender exercise in the recommendation will also give some comfort to the Council in
ensuring that value for money is being obtained and periodically tested, with open
competition maintained.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
Submitted by: Alison Woods, Interim Commercial Finance Manager
Date: 2nd August 2022
Taking into consideration spend in previous years, the annual value of works to be
delivered through this contract is estimated at £80,000 per annum and there is an
approved Highways revenue budget in place, to directly support the award of a
contract to this value.
The Innovation Project implications of this award have been fully considered.
Expenditure code: D0277

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 23

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Heather Stanton, Category
Manager xt 6241
This contract was advertised as an open tender which resulted in 4 bids being
received. Altitude was deemed to be the most economic advantageous tender which
complies with the Procurement Regulations 2015 and SCC standing orders.
As part of the Council’s Innovate program and budget challenges over the next three
years, the service group should consider efficiencies, revenue savings opportunities
and enhanced contract management KPI’s as part of this procurement activity.
HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:
N/A
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:
N/A

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:
List other parts of the organisation consulted with if applicable. Also identify if this is
a joint report and if it is, also reflect this in the Heading.
CONTACT OFFICER: Paul Jackson
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 07812 781 562
WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): ALL

Sample B – aw ard of contract

Page 24

Agenda Item 5c
Part 1: Open to the public

REPORT OF
The Strategic Director for Place
TO
Procurement Board
ON
14th September 2022

TITLE: Approval to go out to competition for Minor Building Works Framework
Agreements

RECOMMENDATION:
That Procurement Board grant authority for the Minor Building Works Framework
Agreements to be procured in accordance with the Council’s Contract Procedure
Rules through an open tender.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The purpose of this report is to request approval to go out competition for the delivery
of the abovementioned service.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:
N/a
KEY DECISION: Not at this stage – a key decision only occurs when the Council is
awarding the contract.

DETAILS:
The requirement of this procurement project is to source a supplier(s) who is/are able to
undertake minor building works on the local authority owned buildings and properties
(excluding housing which is managed separately by a housing association).
The service is currently achieved through a Framework Agreement under an existing
appointment utilising two separate Lots; Lot 1 for works between £0 and £150,000 and
Lot 2 for works between £150,000 and £500,000. Call off contracts are awarded for each
Sample A – going out to tender

Page 25

individual project. This contract terminates on the 31st January 2023.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:
All relating to carbon reduction and social value outcomes relating to local
employment.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:
Work with construction projects is valuable in supporting local employment and in
supporting local supply chains in construction work. This in turn aids the growth and
regeneration of the City.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low

SOURCE OF FUNDING:
See financial comments below.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:
When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services, or the
execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a
contract may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:
There is no direct financial implications for the Council from the awarding of places of
the framework. However, it will provide clear guidance to officers procuring these
types of works and ensure that best value is achieved,
The costs of any works carried out under the frameworks will be funded from within
the available resources included within the Councils approved capital and revenue
programmes.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:
The opportunity will be advertised on the northwest portal, FTS and contracts finder
as an open tender, inviting companies to apply for inclusion on to the framework.
The procurement team will work with the project team in compiling the necessary
paperwork, therefore following the open procedure is compliant with the

Sample A – going out to tender

Page 26

Procurement Contract Regulations and the City Councils Contractual Standing
Orders.

HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: N/a

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:
Consideration should be given to limiting energy use especially through polluting
forms of transport and utilising local supply chains.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:
Not applicable

CONTACT OFFICER: Les Woolhouse
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 07713 786 093

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):
All Wards

Sample A – going out to tender

Page 27

This page is intentionally left blank

